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Chairman Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present
the audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
to the shareholders.

During the year, the international oil prices continued to fluctuate
as a result of the increasing supply and weakening demand and
the slowdown in global economic growth. Domestically, China
government consistently implemented energy reform policies by
announcing a series of publications on natural gas market reform
and environmental protection policies to intensify the development
of the natural gas market.

Along with the increasing volatilities in the international oil and
gas markets and further structural changes in energy consumption
in China, the Group's business had, during the year, faced fierce
competitions and challenges.

During the financial year, the Group recorded consolidated
turnover of approximately RMB8,553 million (2018: approximately
RMB8,150 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 4.9%.
The profit after tax of approximately RMB46 million (2018:
approximately RMB173 million).

Seizing opportunities in the reform of the energy market, the
Group has continued to optimize the cost and business structures
and to seek and explore the expansion of its LNG distribution
channel through proposed collaboration with industry player(s)
and/or state-owned enterprises; foster strategic cooperation with
global renowned oil and gas suppliers to facilitate the trading
business of the Group and sought to further expand collaboration
with quality end users of natural gas.

According to “The 13th 5-Year Plan on Natural Gas Development”
and “Opinions on Accelerating the Promotion of Natural Gas
Utilisation”, the percentage of natural gas consumption will rise
to 10% by 2020. It is clearly that natural gas will be one of the
dominant energy sources in the energy consumption market.
Following with the energy revolution, China will continue the
supply-side structural reform and implementing the green and
low-carbon energy strategy, the energy market in which the Group
operates, are expected to have a healthy and sustainable growth.
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Chairman Statement
FEHE

Looking ahead, the management is mindful of the market
environment and will continue to adopt cautionary steps in and
implementing various strategies to mitigate the adverse impact on
the business arising from challenges as in this market condition.
Moreover, the Group will continues to develop its business in
natural gas sector and to explore new business opportunities in
order to create value for its shareholders.

On behalf of the board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
support. | would also like to express my appreciation to our
management team and all staff for their outstanding contributions
and hard work over the past year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Group results

For the year ended 31 March 2019 and at present, the Group has
been principally engaged in (i) trading of oil and gas products and
the provision of related consultancy services; and (ii) processing,
distribution, sales, trading and transportation of LNG and other
auxiliary operations and networks in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB8,553 million
(2018: approximately RMB8,150 million) with profit after tax of
approximately RMB46 million (2018: approximately RMB173 million).
The Group's performance for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
contributed mainly by the production and sales of LNG and the
trading of oil and gas transactions.

The Group's financial results were adversely affected as compared
to that for the corresponding period in 2018 is mainly due to
stiff competition in the oil and gas market, both locally and
internationally (as further elaborated under the sections headed
"Production and sales of LNG” and “Oil and gas transactions”).

Production and sales of LNG

During the year, the Group produced approximately 470 million
cubic meters of LNG, representing an increase of approximately
23 million cubic meters or 5.1% compared with the last year.
The turnover from the sales of LNG business for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was approximately RMB1,240 million
representing an increase of approximately RMB216 million or 21.1%
compared with the last year, contributing approximately 14.5%
of the total turnover of the Group. Gross profit, decreased by
approximately RMB27 million to approximately RMB180 million
(2018: approximately RMB207 million), gross profit margin, however,
decreased from approximately 20.2% to approximately 14.5%.

Oil and gas transactions

During the year, revenue arising from oil and gas transactions
increased to approximately RMB6,976 million from approximately
RMB6,906 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB70 million or 1% compared with the last year, contributing
approximately 81.6% of the total turnover of the Group.
Gross profit, decreased to approximately RMB17 million from
approximately RMB29 million, with gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 0.4% to approximately 0.2% as a result of the
volatility of international oil prices.

4 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

Al AEBE-BEHEPREEIERENESE LM
RRARREMARRHEBBEZARS &
(RIERARZIMI - 78 - #HE  EHN
8 B DA N EL A I SRS B AR A -

HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HILFE &%
B854 A EEBLARKS,553,000,0007T
(ZZ—N\%: {9 A B %8,150,000,0007T) &
B B 12 % B 49 A R #46,000,0007T (= F —
NEF 4 A R 1173,000,0007T) © 7 & B &
ECE-NF=ZA=T-HIEFENRRE
EREDNEERHFEEBRIERARARA M

AEENBEER T \FRHPEE
TERSBASNA R R KRR TSEF A
UNRTEERBEEBRERARI KA HR
RARRR S |BE#E—FrHi)

HFERHFERILXAR

RAFE AEBLEENBRIERAROS
470,000,0003Z 75 K - B2 £ & 18 tb 38 hn 49
23,000,00037 75K 551% - HHE _ZE—NF
ZA=t—BLEE RBRIELRXRARH
EXBZEEERBKHARY1,240,000,000
T HEF S INA A K #216,000,000
TTE21.1% » 15 A& B 48 'S R B K914.5% ©
E MR A #) A R #27,000,0007T £ £ A R
#180,000,000L(ZZE —N\NF: H AR
207,000,0007T) ° 18 F 7 & B 4920.2% T &
Z4914.5% ©

BHRRARRS

RAFE  KEABERRARR S 2 W&
B X F 84 AR 69060000007T # 1N
#) A K #70,000,0007C 31% £ 49 A B %
6,976,000,0007T © 15 AN &£ B & = X 5 4
81.6% ° E 7 1 #) A & #29,000,0007T &t
Z# A K ¥17,000,0007T  EF X H40.4%
TREEH0.2% WIHARNBEEHEKS -



Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review
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Prospect

Along with the continuous adjustment of energy consumption
structure and promotion of the clean energy, the development of
the natural gas industry and demand of natural gas will maintain
steady growth. The Group expects that the reforms in the natural
gas market would be conducive to the market environment, in
which the Group operates.

The management is mindful of the market environment and
will continue to adopt cautionary steps and implement various
strategies to mitigate the adverse impact on the business arising
from challenges as in this market condition. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to develop its businesses in natural gas sector
and to explore new business opportunities in order to create value
for its shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately RMB8,553 million (2018: approximately RMB8,150
million). The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the
increase in the revenue from the production and sale of LNG
of which reported a turnover of approximately RMB1,240 million
during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately
RMB1,024 million).

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
RMB226 million (2018: approximately RMB261 million). The
decrease in gross profit was primarily due to the stiff competition
in the LNG market. Accordingly, the Group's gross profit margin
for the year ended 31 March 2019 decreased from approximately
3.2% (year ended 31 March 2018) to approximately 2.6%.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
RMB48 million (2018: approximately RMB92 million). The decrease
in other income is mainly due to the arbitral award received by
the Group on 9 November 2017 which resulted in recognition of
interest income and non-recurring damages claim from deposit
paid for acquisition of an associate in last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review
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Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2019 amounted to approximately RMB91 million (2018:
approximately RMB87 million), representing an increase of
approximately 4.6% as compared to the previous year.

Finance Costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately RMB88 million
during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately RMB23
million), representing an increase of approximately 273.1%. The
significantly increase was mainly due to the increase in bank and
other borrowings and guaranteed notes during the year.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group is subjected to taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC due
to its business operations in these jurisdictions. For the year ended
31 March 2019, income tax expenses of the Group approximately
RMB25 million (2018: approximately RMB39 million). The decrease
was mainly due to a decrease in the taxable income.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
As at 31 March 2019, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash of approximately RMBé68 million (2018: approximately RMB50
million).

The net current assets of the Group as at 31 March 2019 were
approximately RMB908 million (2018: net current liabilities
approximately RMB19 million). The current ratio was approximately
1.33 (2018: approximately 0.99).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB1,038 million which are due within one year and approximately
RMB78 million which are repayable after one year, and guaranteed
notes of approximately RMB265 million. The gearing ratio, which is
debt-to-equity ratio, of the Group was approximately 0.9 as at 31
March 2019 compared to approximately 0.4 as at 31 March 2018.

Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and
Equipment

Capital expenditure for purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB20 million (2018: approximately
RMB26 million) for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had pledged assets in an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB877 million (2018:
approximately RMB765 million) to banks for banking facilities.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group issued financial guarantee to the
banks in respect of bank loans obtained by associates of RMB135
million (2018: RMB135 million), representing the amount that could
be required to be paid if the guarantee was called upon in entirety

by the bank.

Treasury Policy

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and US Dollar. The exposure
of exchange fluctuation in respect of HKD, RMB and US Dollar
could affect the Group’s performance and asset value. However,
there are no significant differences of the carrying amount of the
monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated in US Dollar
so the Group has not experienced any material difficulties and
liquidity problems resulting from currency exchange fluctuations.
The Group still monitors the overall currency exposures.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had about 420 employees (2018:
about 450). The remuneration packages are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group's employees are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERHRSE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to maintain good corporate governance standard and procedures
to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2019, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board
will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code"). Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of Six Directors,
including three executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors (the "INEDs"”). The Directors are, collective
and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
One of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 27 to 29.
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Corporate Governance Report
tEERHRSE

The Board members during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as
at the date up to this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year
at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board
meetings that are required for significant and important issues, and
for statutory purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is
provided to the Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the Group's latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board held thirteen meetings, one of the
meetings was only held between the Chairman and independent
non-executive directors, and the attendance of the directors at
the Board Meetings for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out
as below:

Name of Directors

HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BHLEFEREZRE
AHmERHZEEFENER:

PITES
TRBRE(EHEETHAR)
RE % E
P2 52 4

BABTES
2EHEL
E 2k
AR L
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CEMEEE R BEFEBFELE
THOREERHE KRHOBFHT K-
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B AERETRASB Z&MER K
MAEPREETHEBRE -

FR - EFECRTTZREE  EPF KX
SHERTFENBIFRTES ZHET
MRBE-—T-NAF=ZA=T-RALFESL
EEHFESE @R 2BREIWT:

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EEng HERY STHRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Jianging TRBRE(FEFTHAA)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 12/13
Mr. Bao Jun REXSE 11/12
Mr. Zhou Jian JE & 5 A& 10/12
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFPITES
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2FREEBL 13/13
Mr. Wong Chi Keung |2 E 13/13
Mr. Tom Xie HEF S E 13/13

Board minutes are recorded in appropriate details and draft
minutes are circulated to all directors and committee members
for comments before being approved by the Board at the next
immediate meeting. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the directors.
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Corporate Governance Report
tEERHRSE

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and oversees the Group's business, strategic decisions and
financial performance. The Board directly, and indirectly through
its committees, leads and provides direction to management
by laying down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
monitors the Group's operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems
are in place. The Board delegates to the management team the
day-to-day management of the Company’s business including the
preparation of annual and interim reports, and for implementation
of internal control, risk management system, business strategies
and plans developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other except those
disclosed in the director biographical details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company, notwithstanding that every Director shall be retired at
least once every three years.

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company for more than nine years
since January 2010. Dr. Leung has not been involved in the
daily management of the Company nor in any relationships or
circumstances which would impair his independent judgment. Dr.
Leung has made an annual confirmation of independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed the independence of Dr. Leung and considered he
meets the independence guideline set out in the Listing Rules.
The Company is satisfied that, taking into account, inter alia, the
valuable independent judgement, advice and objective views
contributed by Dr. Leung over his tenure, he is of such character,
integrity and experience commensurate with office of independent
non-executive director and remain independent notwithstanding
his length of service.

10 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

EFXEe 5 RSN RAAEEREEARE
B REUERERVYBRR -EF
CEELHEEBBEZBE  BBGIER
BEEEREER EEASENEERY
BRR THRRBRIEZMHAMEIEREA
RERRG REEERMHSIZERTM -
EXEERBEEEEEREEARRERKZ
AREET(F  BREGHEFENRTHERE
IRZEAMER EBRBREZFSH
EZEE -

ARFRDEBERBIUFNTESTRE L
MARAEIBEBELZFEBYERE X
ROMEBULFRTEFTIRBILAL -

BRREEFRBFBETAHREEN EFE
BERERUEL EPF - EH - RikHE
hEX IERERER -

EREES
REARBZABARYN  28EF (RS
VIRRTER)ABESRERERARRBER
BERELEREE HEREFAET=
FRIOER—R -

BE-T-—ZF A REABLIEZER
ARRBYFATEECENFAAL - R
BTUYEBSEARANBEEERE - FEE
MAREFHBLHBHBERBR - R
BELERE EMRAUEIBEAARREH
FEBIMERE - ARFDHHREBEL
BB LM - R R M R BT AR B ES AY
BiEESl c REE(AFEB)RELRNE
THARENEEBLHE 2REREB
B ARFEMEAGHEBEREN - |8k
B UWBTBYFATESTRU BEF
ERBFHREE - WIDABTEL -



Corporate Governance Report
tEERHRSE

Mr. Wong Chi Keung was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company for more than nine years
since January 2010. Mr. Wong has not been involved in the
daily management of the Company nor in any relationships or
circumstances which would impair his independent judgment. Mr.
Wong has made an annual confirmation of independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed the independence of Mr. Wong and considered he
meets the independence guideline set out in the Listing Rules.
The Company is satisfied that, taking into account, inter alia, the
valuable independent judgement, advice and objective views
contributed by Mr. Wong over his tenure, he is of such character,
integrity and experience commensurate with office of independent
non-executive director and remain independent notwithstanding
his length of service.

Mr. Tom Xie was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company for more than nine years since January
2010. Mr. Xie has not been involved in the daily management
of the Company nor in any relationships or circumstances which
would impair his independent judgment. Mr. Xie has made an
annual confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has assessed
the independence of Mr. Xie and considered he meets the
independence guideline set out in the Listing Rules. The Company
is satisfied that, taking into account, inter alia, the valuable
independent judgement, advice and objective views contributed
by Mr. Xie over his tenure, he is of such character, integrity
and experience commensurate with office of independent non-
executive director and remain independent notwithstanding his
length of service.

According to the code provision A.4.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, if an
independent non-executive director has served more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the shareholders.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill causal vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
On the other hand, paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules provides that such directors are to hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting. As mentioned in the
annual report for FY2006, the Board decided to leave the existing
Bye-laws unchanged given the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27 January 2011
and was appointed the chief executive officer ("CEQ") of the
Company on 15 September 2011. He is responsible for managing
the Board and the business of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge in
the business of the Group. The present structure is more suitable
to the Company because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Company's strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee, balance of
power and authority can be ensured and there is no imminent need
to change the arrangement.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. Every director is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, relevant materials including regulatory updates have been
provided to the directors for their reference and study.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view and
recommendations of the three committees ensure proper control
of the Group and the continual achievement of the high standard
corporate governance practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee (the
"RC") comprises three Independent non-executive directors,
namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom
Xie.
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The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

1.

to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, employment conditions, and
responsibilities, and individual performance of the directors
and senior management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; and implement the remuneration policy
laid down by the Board, if any;

to consult the chairman and/or chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors. The
remuneration committee should have access to independent
professional advice if necessary;

without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@)  make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration;

(b)  review and approve the management’s remuneration
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the Group,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

(e)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(f)  review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and otherwise fair and not excessive;
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(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

(h) determine the criteria for assessing employee's
performance, which should reflect the Company's
business goals, objectives and targets;

(i) to ensure that no director or any of his associate is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

() engage external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Committee on issues if necessary;

(k) do any such things to enable the Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by
the Board;

() conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation;

(m) exercise such other powers, authorities and discretion,
and perform such other duties, of the directors
in relation to the remuneration as the Board may
from time to time delegate to it, have regard to the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

(n)  advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any
service contracts of directors that require shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules as amended from time
to time.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice relating to
remuneration proposal if considered necessary. The RC has begun
to review the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management.
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The RC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March
2019 to discuss and approve the Directors’ and management'’s
remuneration for the year. The attendance of the members is as
follows:

Name of Members

BHE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BILFE  FM
ZEECRTT—XRed AwhktEES
REBBRAFEZHM KELFERBR
LU

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

RElA HERE EEARE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAEL 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB E(EE) 1/
Mr. Tom Xie HEE L E 1/1

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the "AC")
comprises three Independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr.
Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

(a)

to be responsible for making recommendations to the board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review with the group’s management and external auditor,
the adequacy of the group's policies and procedures
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational
and compliance controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors to be included in the annual
accounts prior to endorsement by the board,;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Committee should
understand the factors considered by the external auditors
in determining their audit scope, and should discuss with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commencement. The
external auditors’ fees is to be negotiated by management,
and presented to the Committee for review and approval
annually;
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to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

to review the Company’s financial information and to
monitor the integrity of the Company'’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.
In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board,
the Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v}  compliance with accounting and auditing standards;
and

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

with regard to (e) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must
meet, at least twice a year, with the external auditor;
and

(i)  the Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company's staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;
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to review the Company's financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company's risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management's response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;
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(0) to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relation with the external auditor, and to
evaluate the cooperation received by the external auditors,
including their access to all requested records, data and
information; obtain the comments of management regarding
the responsiveness of the external auditors to the Group's
needs; inquire of the external auditors as to whether there
have been any disagreements with management which if not
satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a qualified

report on the group’s financial statements;

(p) to obtain from the external auditors annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining independence
and monitoring compliance with relevant requirements,
including provision of non-audit services and requirements

regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

(g) to discuss with the external auditors any recommendations
arising from the audit (if necessary in the absence of

management);

(N to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in the absence
of management to discuss matters relating to its audit fees,
any issue arising from the audit and any other matters the

auditor may wish to raise;

(s)  to the engagement of the external auditors to perform non-
audit services is in general prohibited except for tax-related
services. If a compelling reason exists to engage the external
auditors due to their unique expertise in a particular area,

the prior approval of the Committee is required,;

(t)  to review and consider the findings of internal investigations
and management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements

of laws, rules and regulations;

(u)  to agree with the Board the Company’s policy relating to
the hiring of employees or former employees of the external
auditors and monitor the applications of such policy. The
Committee shall consider whether as a result of such hiring
there has been any impairment of the auditor’'s judgment or

independence in respect of an audit;
(v)  to report to the Board on the above matters; and

(w) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity and
seek any information it requires within its term of reference. It
is also authorized to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to invite the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the AC is
dedicated to review and supervise the Group's financial reporting
process and internal controls. The financial results for the year
ended 31 March 2019 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The AC conducts at least two regular meetings a year in addition
to other meetings that are required for significant and important

issues, and for statutory purposes.

The AC has held two meetings during the year ended 31 March
2019 and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members
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RElA EREEiERE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAEL 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB E(EE) 2/2
Mr. Tom Xie AL E 2/2

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the AC had reviewed
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2019
and the interim report for the six months ended 30 September
2018. The AC had also reviewed the risk management report on
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee (the “NC")
comprises Mr. Wang Jianging, the chairman and the executive
director of the Company and two Independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

(a)

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
Sufficient biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to enable
them to make an informed decision;

to make recommendations to the Board the appointment or
re-appointment of directors of the Company and succession
planning for directors of the Company in particular the
chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of directors for the Board's approval;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;

to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge
its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.
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Nomination Policy
The Board has established a nomination policy, a summary of which
is as follows:

1. Stipulate the duties of the Nomination Committee, including
nominating suitable director candidates for the Board,;

2. Determine the selection criteria and procedures for the
appointment and re-appointment of directors;

3. Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the industry,
independence, the ability to assist and support management
and reputation for integrity are the factors that need to be
considered when appointing directors;

4. Commit to achieve a diversified composition of the Board in
respect of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and experience,
and length of service and assess the diversity status of the
Board every year;

5. Make recommendations on succession planning for directors;
and
6. From time to time review this nomination policy, as

appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this policy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Company has established a board diversity policy, a summary of
which is as follows:

1. Set out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board of the
Company; and

2. In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
considers the diversity of the Board from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy.

Final decisions of appointing directors to be made by the Board
will be based on each candidate’s attributes and contributions to
be made to the Board. The Nomination Committee monitors the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, reviews the Board
Diversity Policy as and when appropriate and recommends any
revisions for the Board's approval.
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The NC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March
2019 to discuss and review the structure, size and composition of
the Board. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—-BILEFE &%
ZEBGCET REF  IRERIES

==
EHRE ABEKE - KELFERBR

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

BElE HERY S@KRY
Mr. Wang Jianging FRELEE 1/1
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAEL 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB E(EE) 1/

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standard. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statement of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 43 to 52.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 March 2019, fees payable to the auditor of
the Group for audit services was approximately RMB1,700,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as a reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage it risks across business operations.
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The Group has established the risk management organizational
framework, which comprises of the Board, the audit committee
and the risk management group. The Board will assess and
determine the nature and extent of risks acceptable for the Group
in fulfilling its strategic goals, and will ensure the establishment
and maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems by the Group. The Board will also
supervise the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems by the management.

The Group has also formulated and adopted the enterprise risk
management system, which provides effective policy procedures
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The risk
management group will, at least once in a year, identify risk
exposures that may affect the realization of the Group's business
target, assess and rank the risks through a standard mechanism,
formulate a risk mitigation plan and identify staff held accountable
for the risks, enabling the Group to make rational allocation of
resources to cope with the major risks.

Furthermore, the Group has established internal audit function, so
as to help the Board and the audit committee to constantly monitor
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify defects in the design and operation of the internal control
and put forward proper remedies. Serious defects identified in the
internal control will be reported to the audit committee and the
Board promptly, and efforts will be made to formulate the remedial
plan and identify the staff to be held accountable. In addition,
timely follow-up will be carried out to ensure improvement of the
situation.

Risk management report and internal audit report will, at least on
a yearly basis, be submitted to the audit committee for review
before submission to the Board for final approval. The Board
has conducted annual review on the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems, including changes in the
nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
the ability of the Group to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment, the scope and quality of management's
ongoing monitoring of risks and the internal control system,
the work of internal audit function, the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Board, significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified during
the period and the relevant impacts, as well as the effectiveness
of the Group's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance, and determined the effectiveness of the existing risk
management and internal control systems.
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The above-mentioned risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage but not to eliminate the risk of
failing to fulfill the business target. Therefore, these systems can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that there will
not be material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention, unless it falls within the
Securities and Futures Ordinance safe harbours. The Group will
ensure the confidentiality of such information before full disclosure
of such information to the public. Where the Group considers
it impossible to maintain confidentiality as required, or the
information may have been divulged, the Group will disclose such
information to the public in no time. However, the Group will make
sure that the information contained in the announcement is not
false or misleading as to a material fact, or is false or misleading
due to the omission of a material fact, enabling the public to obtain
inside information in an equal, timely and effective manner.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to F.1.2 of the Code, the appointment of the company
secretary should be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution. The appointment of the current company
secretary was dealt with by a written resolution in September 2013.
The Board considers that, prior to the execution of the written
resolution to appoint the current company secretary, all Directors
were individually consulted on the matter without any dissenting
opinion and there was no need to approve the matter by a physical
board meeting instead of a written resolution.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate with
shareholders and investors, the board and the Company maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders mainly through the
Company's financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings.
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The Company also maintains a website at http://www.
yuanhenggas.com as one of communication channel for the
shareholders and investors. For any enquiries, the shareholders,
the investors, media or the public may contact the Company
directly, contact details of which are posted on the Company’s
website.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company held an

annual general meeting and a special general meeting. The
attendance of the directors at the meetings was as follows:

Name of Directors

AN BV IR A B U http://www.yuanhenggas.
com ERERRERKREEBRNREEZ
—o KRR REE HEBIQXKRALTWE
EREHR AIEEBEART  GHEBSK
HEEHNARE M -

BE-T-AFZA=+-ALFE AR
AR TR BRBEAER RS
X EFHEERABRMT

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

Esns HERY S&KY
Mr. Wang Jianging FRELEE 1/2
Mr. Bao Jun RELE 1/2
Mr. Zhou Jian JE 2 5k & 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFPITES

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAEL 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Keung |2 E 2/2
Mr. Tom Xie ML 2/2

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has developed a dividend policy in the interest of
shareholders. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. In considering the dividend payout,
the Board will make decisions with reference to the Group's
performance and financial position, results of operation and level
of cash; statutory and regulatory restrictions; future prospects
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant. The
Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 March 2019, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting
by shareholders

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting
to which the requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100)
shareholders may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting;

(b)  to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquires to the board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquires to the Company by post or
delivery to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 4102, 41/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianqing

Mr. Wang, aged 50, has extensive experience and business
network in the energy and trading industry. Mr. Wang obtained
his Bachelor's degree in Industrial Management Engineering
from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding College (now known as the Jiangsu
University of Science and Technology).

Mr. Wang was the chairman and executive director of FU JI Food
and Catering Services Holdings Limited (now known as Fresh
Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 1175)
(retired on 24 September 2014). He is also the general manager of
Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd.

Mr. Wang is a cousin of Mr. Bao Jun, an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Bao, aged 51, has over 20 years of experience in project
investment, construction and operation management. He obtained
his bachelor degree in Engineering from Jiangnan University
(formerly known as Wuxi Polytechnic University) in 1989. Mr. Bao
joined Guangdong Light Industry Design Institute as an engineer
from 1989 to 2000 and was responsible for the research and
development of the manufacturing technique of various biological-
engineering and chemical engineering projects such as the design
and management of amino acids production plant and brewery.

Mr. Bao is a cousin of Mr. Wang Jianging, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou, age 46, holds a Master’s degree in Economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics, the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading during his
service in China National United Oil Corporation as well as the fuel
oil spot and future markets managing of its branches in Asia and
America. He was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution divisions. Mr. Zhou
has over 10 years of extensive working experience in energy field
with broad business network, and is familiar with global energy
environment and market.

He was also an independent non-executive director for Tack Fiori
International Group Limited (now known as Life Healthcare Group
Limited) (stock code: 928) (resigned on 5 June 2019), the company
is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, aged 51, has extensive knowledge and
experience in risk management of financial instruments, treasury
business and financial derivative products. He has served DBS
Bank for eight years and was Senior Vice President in the Treasury
and Markets Division upon his departure from the bank on 22 May
2009. Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry in 1996
with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity Derivatives Asia
Department. He had served a few other financial institutes before
joining DBS Bank Ltd as a financial product specialist as well and
had held various roles in business development, trading and risk
management.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese nationality,
holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree of Science (1990)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of
Science in Mathematics (1993) and a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Mathematics (1996) from the California Institute of Technology,
and a Master degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

He also has been in the position of independent non-executive
director for FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited
(now known as Fresh Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd)
(stock code: 1175) since 8 July 2013.

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong, aged 64, holds a Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and CPA Australia; an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a
Responsible Officer for asset management and advising on
securities for CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK) Company
Limited, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong
Kong.
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Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy general
manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou
Investment Company Limited) (stock code: 123), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, for over ten years. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), China Ting Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3398), Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (stock
code: 1039), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code:
3308), Nickel Resources International Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as China Nickel Resources Holdings Company
Limited) (stock code: 2889), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code:
617), Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (stock code: 78),
TPV Technology Limited (stock code: 903) and Zhuguang Holdings
Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 1176), all of these companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong has over 39 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-
executive director of ENM Holdings Limited (stock code: 128)
(retired on 9 June 2017), Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8046) (resigned on 19 September 2017) and China Shanshui
Cement Group Limited (stock code: 691) from 2 February 2016
to 23 May 2018, all of these companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Wong was also a Responsible Officer for Greater China
Capital Limited (resigned on 16 April 2016), responsible for asset
management, advising on securities and advising on corporate
finance, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Tom Xie
Mr. Xie, aged 68, has years of management experience with a
Hong Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a Master's
Graduation Certificate in Gemology, both from China University of
Geosciences (Beijing) in 2012.

Mr. Xie was appointed as independent non-executive director
of U-Right International Holdings Limited (now known as Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited) (stock code: 627) from
29 August 2013 to 1 December 2017, the company is listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Xie is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.
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Director’s Report

EFEEHEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out
in note 51 and note 21 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion
on the Group's future business development and an analysis
of the Group's performance during the year using key financial
performance indicators are provided in the “Chairman Statement”
on pages 2 to 3 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis
of the Group Financial Review” on pages 4 to 7 of this Annual
Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in notes 45 and
46 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 173 to 187
of this Annual Report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the year ended 31 March 2019, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Environmental protection

The Group understands that its business has an impact on
the environment and recognises the importance of sound
environmental management practices and sustainable business
operations. It is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations as set by the government in People's Republic of China
("PRC”) and Hong Kong.

For more details regarding the Company’s environmental policies
and practices, please refer to the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” which will be published within three months
after the publication of this Annual report on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
and business associates are key stakeholders to the Group's
success. It strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging its employees, providing quality products and services
to its customers, collaborating with business partners (including
suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality products and services
and supporting our community.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
will be published within three months after the publication of this
Annual report on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 53 to 54.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid
share capital are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2019.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at end of the year.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-laws, one
third of directors for the time being shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b)
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers).

EERTETBRAENRKRMG - H
AR REEEZEZR XS

RZF-NE=ZA=1+—H XARARESF
K £ BITHA BRAR R AL 7] 48 Bt % B
(RERHFLBAEGRD(EFEAEERG)
SEXVEFTI T2 W) 2 B - RO &
BHEEFET  HEAE@QALCHENRIERZ MY
ERPIENGcRERAFEZERMAZ
Bl ABR HOBEREBELTETAES
ETEFRPGZBETAZTHANEART
R RZ 2R RORRIAT -

Number of Shares held

Fi ¥ i 4 8B
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position total holding
FHRAY
EEfg B4 EmtE Be KB Bt
(Note 2)
(F$5E2)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 3,632,591,824 — 55.50%
corporation (Note 1)
FRE REEEERE (D
Beneficial interest 132,532,000 — 2.02%
EnEn
Bao Jun Beneficial interest 45,000,000 — 0.69%
RE EnEn
Zhou Jian Beneficial interest 10,000,000 — 0.15%
B 2 EnEn
Notes: fft 2% -
1. Mr. Wang Jianging was deemed interested in, and duplicated, the 1. TRBEAERBE RN BEERAFTEE R Z

2,996,087,473 shares which Champion Ever Limited was interested, the
586,486,402 shares which Galaxy King Limited was interested, and the
50,017,949 shares which Champion Golden Limited was interested. Champion
Golden Limited is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Jianging. Both Champion Ever
Limited and Galaxy King Limited are wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

2. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, i.e. 6,545,621,131 shares of the Company.

2,996,087,473/% i 15 + Galaxy King Limited# &
T 5 2. 586,486,402f% & 1 & Champion Golden
Limited % & # &5 2 50,017.9490% & {7 h # B &
# iz o Champion Golden LimiteddH £ & /& %
EFFBES0% s o WIEAR R AF KGalaxy King
Limited 9R TR BELEELEEAR ©

2. FRESHWIREBEARARZZT-NAF=A=+

—BZ B ETRA(BIARRA6,545,621,1310% &
MTEBH -

T RRIERBR AR 2019 F3f
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, none of the directors of the Company had
any interests in respect of options to subscribe for the shares of
the Company under the Company’s share option scheme approved
and adopted on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading "Directors’ rights to
acquire shares”, none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for shares of
the Company, or had exercised any such right during the vyear,
and at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than as set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements and as disclosed under the heading “Related party
transactions and other disclosures”, no transactions, arrangement
or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are disclosed in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

=
i
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N
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i
=
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During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had conducted RAFE  RRAFIREAMBRRGETAT
the following transactions which constituted continuing connected e WERXHIRE TR BE4AEEK
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing RAR 2 BEBERS -

Rules.

1. On 22 August 2017, BINTZF MR AR AF (Guangzhou 1. —E—t+FNAF+-H BEM=
Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited*) (“Yuanheng Gas”), a wholly- MBEBRAF(TFME] - —ERE
owned foreign enterprise established under the laws of MEDERRY 2 EBERE IR
the PRC and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of AAFlsHEZEMBARMRMAE
the Company, entered into a renewed supply agreement MAR(EE)EREERAATE MK
("Renewed GG Supply Agreement”) with Guizhou Gas ) HIWB AT R EBE AL (5
(Group) Co., Ltd* (EMM R (£ E) BR EE 2 F]) ("Guizhou (BN R SR MR RAR A
Gas") for supply of LNG to Guizhou Gas, its subsidiaries EMRRTI—HHEBEHERBRE(E
and its associates (collectively "GG Group”) for a term of 3 BEMNARTEERZE]D BB =F "
years up to 31 March 2020. Guizhou Gas holds 50% interests BERE_Z_TF=F=+—HI &
in EMZEZgRIEBRZAT (Guizhou Huaheng Energy MRRFBEEMEZTRREEFRD
Investments Co., Ltd*) (“Huaheng Energy”), a company Al ([EZFgR] —BERBHBEER
established under the laws of the PRC and indirectly non- KR 2 AR /RARAT 2HEFEEE
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company where the Company MEAR  MARAHEREERT
indirectly holds the remaining 50% interests in it. Therefore, 50% 2 # 5 ) 50% o Eitk - J IR
Guizhou Gas is a connected person of the Company. REART Z@BEANLT -

On 25 January 2019, the Directors by resolution revised the RZE-NF-—HA-_+hB FF=Z
annual cap in respect of the transactions contemplated under AREBRASKBGRECETER
the Renewed GG Supply Agreement by increasing some of R BERBEESINMRAERER
the annual caps for the then forthcoming periods. Certain EBETRGIFELR - EHENM
annual caps for the then forthcoming periods under the MARBERETERERBEE & T
Renewed GG Supply Agreement had to be revised owing FEERAEER  BERBIERAR
to the increase in the market unit prices for LNG since the MMSEEBFEEE NN AMHIE
signing of the Renewed GG Supply Agreement. For details of WEREAM LA - BRAFE LR 2E
revision of the annual caps, please refer to the announcement AAHE Bm2HARRRMR T —
of the Company dated 25 January 2019. NE—AZ+HRBZASE -
The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap or THREBINEBEES MM AR ERZE 2F
the revised annual cap (as the case may be) for the Renewed B ERIKLEITFELRARBRM
GG Supply Agreement: TE) MR
Annual cap
FEEER
RMB
AR%
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 R-ZE—+FWHA—-HBZE
—E-\F=ZA=+—H 160,000,000
From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 RZZE-N\FHA—BZE
—E-NhEF=A=+—H 280,000,000
From 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 RZE-NFNA-—HBZE
—E-EF=ZA=+—H 300,000,000
The total sale of natural gas products to members of E-_Z2-\FOA—BE-ZF—NHF
the GG Group from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 was ZA=+—8 mEMRREEHK
RMB171,355,000. BRAIHERAREMMNBIHERER
A E#171,355,0007T °
*  For identification purpose only * EHET
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2. On 22 August 2017, Yuanheng Gas entered into a renewed 2. RZIZE—+tFENRAZ+ZH T=R

purchase agreement (“Renewed GG Purchase Agreement”) RAMAEBEKERAEEMNRDEER
with Guizhou Gas for purchase of natural gas products KRERREE RARER(BIERILX
(including both LNG and natural gas) by members of the ARRRAR)BEMRRETZ— 0
Group from members of the GG Group for a term of 3 years EREBEGR(EEENRIBER
up to 31 March 2020. #) > RH=F EE-T-TF=A
=t—HLk-
On 25 January 2019, the Directors by resolution revised the RZZE-hF—-—R-+HB EFZ
annual cap in respect of the transactions contemplated under AEBARAERBEDECFE L
the Renewed GG Purchase Agreement by increasing the R EIRBEEEEMNMRABEE HE
annual caps for the then forthcoming periods. Certain annual RETRGZFERE LR - EEE MM
caps for the then forthcoming periods under the Renewed REERETERBRBAMCETE
GG Purchase Agreement had to be revised owing to the EERAEIER BRAARE D
increase in the market unit prices for natural gas products MiZEEEHTEEEMNRABER
since the signing of the Renewed GG Purchase Agreement. BEEFLEHA - BEFE LR 28F]
For details of revision of the annual caps, please refer to the FIE B2HEARRBEHARE TN
announcement of the Company dated 25 January 2019. F-—AZ+HRHZAE -
The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap or TEREINEBEENRABEHZR 2F
the revised annual cap (as the case may be) for the Renewed ELERMEIETFE LRGEIB AT
GG Purchase Agreement: TE)RRRR
Annual cap
EELER
RMB
AR
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 RZE-—tFMONA—BZE
—E-N\F=ZA=+—H 170,000,000
From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 RZE-N\FOA—-—BZE
“E-hF=ZA=+—H 280,000,000
From 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 RZE-NFNA-—HBZE
—E-ETF=A=+—H 364,000,000
The total purchase of natural gas products from members RZE-—NFHNA—BE=ZZ—NF
of the GG Group from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 was ZA=+—HREMNRREEKER
RMB259,680,000. ABBEZRAAREMBERARE
259,680,0007T °
The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and BYFHTEFCEHNLRARLEH
confirmed that the above continued connected transactions FeElsiz i BHAERS

have been entered into by the Group:

() in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (i) TR—REBEBEXEBBIET:
(i)  on normal commercial terms or better; and (i) DE—REEEREIEEERK
RIS R
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing (i) DRBHEEXZWHHEET MR
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the SERBRATRE  UHEAR
interests of the Company and the shareholders of the AINRERR BB -

Company as a whole.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions set out above
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the following findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

(i)  the transactions have received the approval of the
Board of Directors of the Company;

(i) the transactions were in all material respects in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve provision of good or services by
the Group;

(i)  the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) the transactions have not exceeded the cap disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 25
January 2019.

There are no other connected transactions which are
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with respect to continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Company and the Group during the year ended
31 March 2019.

IN/N ZEEZYMIZBE S S5
%“Aﬁ%ZE EBEBKERNSE
30005R [E BN EBH BT T K ER
MEZFTIE] W2REBSFTMAE
M2 BISHRBETA05 R E S L
R RI BT 1t 45 48 8 48 32 5 MO AZ SR (K
Tl EAAEBFERER %%
HRE - ZSMMERLEREER
(G *$ﬁﬁﬁ%$igﬁﬁimﬁ
BIEUAEFRENBEBRERSGZT
PNFAE KR

() ZERFEEARFEZ=SH
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following shareholders (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company whose interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company are disclosed
in the section headed "Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above) had interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO:

FERREREMALTZRHGRHE
B i HE 2R T ik B 4 5B

R-ZF-NF=ZA=1+—8 BEEHH
BARBREBEZE S LR ERIIEIGFE
ZERMARE  TIBRRMNEXES
REZBITBABREND  HEKRDIKER
2 m R R AR BERARRK
- HERODEEEETEAEED XA
MEFRARATETRABRINRAR
AR D R A BE R D h B et

Number of Shares held

FRisi% i 8B
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest position position total holding
¥ I% B 8
BREEHE S tEaty BE RE Bk
(Note 7)
(Bff 5£7)
Champion Ever Limited Beneficial interest (Note 1) 2,996,087,473 — 45.77%
TEARAR B (M sk
Galaxy King Limited Beneficial interest (Note 2) 586,486,402 — 8.96%
Galaxy King Limited Bmm (M s2)
Cheng Xu Family interest (Note 3) 3,765,123,824 — 57.52%
Bix R Ik 1 2= (T 5E3)
China Construction Security interest (Note 4) 1,500,000,000 — 2292%
Bank Corporation
FEEFZBRTROERAR HEEE (T4
Central Huijin Investment Ltd Security interest (Note 4) 1,500,000,000 — 2292%
FRIESIKEEREMT AR HIPEE (M4
Eight International Group Beneficial interest (Note 5) 331,000,000 — 5.06%
Limited
Eight International Group & & 1w (P 5%5)
Limited
Zong Aolei Interest in controlled 331,000,000 — 5.06%
corporation (Note 5)
Zong Aolei X9k B R 2 (MY 5E5)
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Name of Shareholders

BREZE HE

Capacity/
Nature of interest

Sy HEME

Number of Shares held
Fi #5 B 1 B B
Long Short
position position

Be we

Percentage of
total holding
Frlx 48
BSH

(Note 7)

(B &E7)

Fundfleet Investment Limited

Partnership

Fundfleet Investment Limited

Partnership

New Sunshine Global Limited

(as Limited Partner)

New Sunshine Global Limited

(ERBERABAN)
Zhou Guofeng

Zhou Guofeng

Wealth Bloom Investment
Limited (as General Partner)

FHEREAR QT
(ERB—HREBA)

SFUND International
Investment Fund
Management Limited

BNESEERERE
EcBEBABARAA

FEMEIR KB & E
ESEEBRAF
FEMNEIR X E R E
HeBEEARAQA

BEME R ERAIFRE
ERBRRAF

EMR R EREIFHRE
ZRERAE

EMNEXREESEE
B R AT

BEMNEXREESER
BERRAE

EMNmHTERRESE

B R AT

EMNTHTRERRESHE

BERRA

Beneficial interest (Note 6)

-

B (M ixe)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)

PR A a5 (M 5Ee)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)
Ry A B R (M 5E6)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)
AR A E R (M FTe)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)

405 B #E 5 (Y 5x6)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)
2P A B R s (B 5E6)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)
2P A B R = (BT 5E6)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)

PR A a5 (M FEe)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)
Ry A B (M 5E6)

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%
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Notes:

Save

Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.
Galaxy King Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianging and is deemed interested in,
and duplicated, the interests Mr. Wang is interested in.

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, CCB International Overseas
Limited is wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which in turn
is wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn is held as to
57.11% by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. All above interests duplicate each
other.

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Eight International Group
Limited is wholly owned by Zong Aolei. All above interests duplicate each
other.

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Fundfleet Investment Limited
Partnership is held as to 55% by New Sunshine Global Limited (as Limited
Partner) and 22% by Wealth Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner).
New Sunshine Global Limited (as Limited Partner) is wholly owned by Zhou
Guofeng. Wealth Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner) is wholly
owned by SFUND International Investment Fund Management Limited, which
in turn is wholly owned by E/NEIR X EREREE S BTEFR DA, which
in turn is held as to 95% by EME K S RAIFIKEZKRAER AT and 5%
by BMEXKREESERBERAAT, BEMBRSBAFREERERAA
is wholly owned by BME ¥ EE & BE AR A A, which in turn is wholly
owned by BN MM T ERILEEEFRAF. All above interests duplicate
each other.

The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, i.e. 6,545,621,131 shares of the Company.

as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person had

registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Director’s Report
EEEHEE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, the directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any willful negligence, willful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attached to any of them.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force and was
in force throughout the financial year.

The Company has purchased the directors’ liability insurance to
provide protection against claims arising from the lawful discharge
of duties by the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable

FRE - HENBEOEXAT LHE
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RIBEARRR ZRARI4HAE166(1) & » EER]
WMARF ZEE R MNESHREE  gLHEK
HEMALEKATERSKBREENTES
ZRBRIELEMNT A BEX 2B
BRAVNTERSXIBEBBRBE M EER
BFH KA BR - BXK - BEERHAEX
AEBRERLEZEMEE  HIHBET
BRRE &= EAT ] A £ AT BE 4 78 LA 2 AT Al 8K
BERA - HEEY HFFITHEERE - B
B8 70 B BE (B G SR B A A 0 A B E B R AR
E—EBM -

ARFCKRBEEEERR  RESKEE
BoARTARELANBEETRHRE

TERFRRMER
AEETEEF R F RS

to the Group's major customers and suppliers are as follows: MEBEZADLET
Sales SHEHW %
— The largest customer —BAREFP 39
— Five largest customers aggregated — hREP&F 69
Purchases REBEH %
— The largest suppliers — BRAHER 34
— Five largest suppliers aggregated — ERHEREAE 64

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers during the year.

SEF BEIBRALREEFAHA
AR RRAE% LA b 2 A A 3R - B2 OB
mEAEERAERERE S P RAEEA
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EEEHEE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company,
the directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’'s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBAHRES

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS
LIMITED

T RRERBERLQF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group"”) set out on pages 53 to 194,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter
FAREZEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAERMAREXER

Impairment of goodwill

2 i E

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to significant judgement and estimation
involved in the preparation of the discounted cash flows
used in the impairment assessment.
AITHEERESN R BEAREZEE RARREH
WMEEMARRRAESRER P RE XA REF -

The Group has goodwill arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries in previous years amounted to
RMB56,740,000 before impairment as at 31 March 2019.
The management is required to test for impairment of
goodwill on an annual basis by comparing the recoverable
amount and the carrying amount of the cash generating
unit to which such goodwill has been allocated. As at
31 March 2019, the accumulated impairment loss on
goodwill amounted to RMB22,670,000 as set out in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.
RZZB-NAF=RA=+—8 " &ERER FEBTFEKEN
BormELNEREEER AKKS6,740,0007T &2
BRAGFETHERENS D EABEIEEHERMEL
ReELBMUNAKOSRERAEETILR - HAOF
EUMBREWFTIE  RZZE—NF=A=+—H &
BRI BEEESARK22,670,0007T -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
goodwill included:

ATERBEREZEFBERE:

U Understanding the relevant key controls over the
assessment of impairment of goodwill;

THRARBERENGEOHEBERIES

o Obtaining the discounted cash flow analysis of
the relevant cash generating unit prepared by
the management and checking its mathematical
accuracy;
ERERERUENEBECELBUMNBRRSE
MBI R E H BB

. Engaging our internal valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of the discount rate used;

ZEAFGEEERFHEAAMRRNEE K

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow analysis, including growth rates, estimated
average purchase price of natural gas and
average selling price of liquefied natural gas with
reference to the historical sales volume, revenue,
cost of sales, operating expenses and future
strategic plans of the Group;
HEMRESREINM T RAARBRRNSIE
1t BREKL2E EEEAEHE Ka #HE
PR BRI MR RREE A SRS HAIEREK
AARGATFHBEBRBRERARFHIERE:
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Key audit matter
FAREZEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAERMAREXER

In determining the recoverable amount, the Group's e Testing data inputs in the discounted cash

management assessed the value in use of the cash
generating unit by discounting the estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit to
the present value. Significant judgment and assumptions
were required in the process such as the use of discount

rates, growth rates, estimated average purchase price of e

natural gas and average selling price of liquefied natural
gas during the forecast period as set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETAREHEE EEENEEETEREELE
UEEREE HEARASCELABNRBMELNMGF AR
KBEREMRAERE - HNGEEMBERRM EIME
ZBREFRERERHE RMRR - WRBEB AR 2B
BEBER - RARMGFFABEERBRICRARFY
EE-

flow analysis, on a sample basis, against source
documents;

IR SR E DT P EHE A& A BUR E R X+
HELTHIBR L ¥

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow analysis made by
management by comparing the historical analysis
made against the actual performance of the
Group; and

BRLBAEBEINE EXEERRKA
HEREREMERERSRENTHERE &

Assessing whether the disclosures of impairment
testing in the consolidated financial statements
are sufficient and appropriate.

FEFEMBRERBEENRENAZSS R R X
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FAREZEIR FTHERNAERMAREXER

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 FE W AR =R {E

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
a key audit matter due to the significance of the trade of trade receivables included:
receivables to the consolidated financial statements and AN{TE M E SEWRFORENH BT BHE:

significant judgment involved by the management in the

impairment assessment process. o Understanding the key controls on how the loss

RIRESRBERREZRNR—HHEREZEE R allowance for trade receivables is estimated by

AEERUERHGaMBHREINEZME  MAER the management;

BFfEEREPIRAEEBHFELERAL - THREEBNEGFESEREREBRREN T
ZEE:
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Key audit matter
FAREZEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAERMAREXER

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables using expected credit loss ("ECL") model
in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Under
the model, the Group recognises lifetime ECL individually
for debtors with significant balances or that are credit
impaired and/or collectively for the remaining debtors
based on their past due status. The management takes
into consideration, inter alia, the historical default rates,
past due status, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the report
date as well as the forward-looking information specific
to the debtors. The loss allowance amount of the credit
impaired trade receivables is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

WG AM BRI AIRE - BEEEREBEFENER
SRANER M T AICARBPEEBER(RBEES
BDEAGHAESRWERNEEREE - BREZRX - &
SEREEEAERIEERENEBAEBREREH
BHEEERER SR EREFARBEARRRNER
BREPEREEFER -EREZR(ETEFB)BERY
T EHBER  BRLEMNREEREBHNE RN
BEHARFAHNREEERNTE - FEERENEFHEK
ERzEBERBERIREENERERGEFRKRESR
ENREZHRNEZE  Y2ERARKEEEHEFTE -

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, in the current year, the Group adopted
HKFRS 9 and recognised an additional impairment of
RMB2,848,000 as at 1 April 2018 in accordance with
the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9. The Group had
trade receivables with carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,081,266,000 (net of the allowance for credit losses of
approximately RMB5,054,000 as at 1 April 2018.
WINEE BB RMA2FEE - AFRE EXERNEE
B mELREIORARBEFEMBERELBNEIFRHIBE
fFEXH =T —/\F A —R#EREINUEA R 2,848,000
T BEEER_ZE-N\FOA-BNEBESEKKERE
B4R A R1,081,266,0007T (EMBREEBHRBEEEOA
R #5,054,0007T)

The Group had trade receivables with carrying amount
of approximately RMB2,247,080,000 (net of the allowance
for credit losses of approximately RMB6,791,000) as at 31
March 2019.

RZZE-NF=A=+—H0  B5ENZEZIEKERE
EEA A A R2,247,080,0007T (BHBREEEBEEEOA
R #6,791,0007T) °

Understanding how the aging analysis of trade
receivables is prepared by the management;

THREEENWAERESEKRRKE DT

Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis of the
trade receivables to the sale invoices, on a sample
basis;
REHEZEZMEANAE SR ERRORE DT
B YE B

Evaluating the management’s basis and
judgement in determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables as at 1 April 2018 and 31
March 2019, including their identification of
trade receivables with significant balances or
that are credit impaired, the reasonableness of
management’s grouping of the remaining trade
debtors into different categories in the provision
matrix;
HEEEEEER T /\FOA-—BR_-_Z—
NE=ZA=T—"HREZFRRESREEBERER
MEERFE  BRAMNEHREAKDEERE
MEZREER EEERHTRREERRD /R
WRMETHTNEERNE RN
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
FAREZEIR FTHERNAERMAREXER
o Evaluating the basis of estimated loss rates

applied in each debtor with significant balances
or that are credit impaired (with reference to the
external credit rating, historical default rates, past
due status, current conditions at the report date
and forward-looking information);

B AR E K5 B R E /) & 18 B U AR FX P FE
AHEEAEEENEE RS EETR B
FENE - @RI RWEAHNE IR R
ATEMEE R

o Evaluating the reasonableness and

appropriateness of historical default rates, past
due status, current conditions at the report
date as well as the forward-looking information
specific to the debtors used in determining
estimated loss rates applied in each category
in the provision matrix in calculation of the loss
allowance;
T EEEBEREAERBERDZRAMNMKA
HABEXAEANBEROX  AHBER K
HEBHMNENMARMEBATENREEER
meBEEREE T

o Testing subsequent settlements of trade
receivables with significant balances or that are
credit impaired, on a sample basis, to source
documents; and
REMEEE  HRRBEXMGAAEHREAXEE
ERENEZIREERERENBR K

o Assessing whether the disclosures regarding
the impairment assessment of trade receivables
in the consolidated financial statements are
sufficient and appropriate.

AR A M HRER A E 5 KR FORE T b &
REEHESRRERERE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERmREMEEBARR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000

Bt 5E ARBFR ARETT

Revenue W = 5 8,552,947 8,149,851
Cost of sales and services $HE KBRS Ak A (8,327,018) (7,888,643)
Gross profit EM 225,929 261,208
Other income Hp U A 7 47,865 91,640
Other gains and losses Efbla kg8 8 (255) (8,594)
Impairment losses (recognised) reversed (BERA)EBLRERERSE 9 (3,430) 6,716
Distribution and selling expenses DEEEERAX (9,538) (15,305)
Administrative expenses TR X (90,874) (86,862)
Share of results of associates JE(EBE 2 N R ¥ & (10,753) (12,890)
Finance costs BE KA 10 (87,667) (23,498)
Profit before tax B F4 B = 71,277 212,415
Income tax expense Fr 5 fi 1 (25,176) (38,977)
Profit for the year F A S A 12 46,101 173,438
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hm2E(FEZ) KA
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently E &1 & & # 748 2
to profit or loss: B a)EA -
Fair value loss on investment in equity RIE A FEETAEA
instrument at fair value through other ZEBANRATE
comprehensive income KENAFEEIR (26,886) —
Deferred tax related to item that will not be BEAeEHMHHIBEE
reclassified .z EETIA 6,721 —
(20,165) =

[tems that may be reclassified subsequently —RZH T EFH DI E

to profit or loss: Ea Ay EA -
Exchange differences arising on translation EIRE G N T &= &
of foreign operations ZEH ER (43) (11,014)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHHEREATE
investment W & = 18,686
Deferred tax related to item that may be B @SN HHEIEE
reclassified GiEN o R — (4,672)
(43) 3,000
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREME2EFEZ)BA
for the year (20,208) 3,000
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEABE 25,893 176,438
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERSRHEMEERARR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NnE —E-N\F
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARETR AR FT
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AT MR FE R & A
Owners of the Company RATHEAA 28,357 142,060
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR BE = 17,744 31,378
46,101 173,438
Total comprehensive income attributable to: AT A £ /&G 2 E U A
-
Owners of the Company RABHEAA 8,149 145,060
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR IE = 17,744 31,378
25,893 176,438
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BRAENARESD) 16
— Basic —EX 0.43 2.18
— Diluted — #5E 0.43 217
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RS B 3 AR R R

At 31 March 2019
R=ZF-NAF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-1E —E-N\F
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBTT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 17 713,854 753,846
Prepaid lease payments BT & 18 37,253 38,732
Goodwill [k 19 34,070 34,070
Intangible asset ELEE 20 7,380 7,773
Interests in associates REEE RA 2= 21 132,919 143,672
Derivative financial instrument THESRITA 21 3,150 —
Long-term receivables & Hi e W 3 IE 22 5,088 122,717
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate &t J B — @ 5 &2 2 &)
XNz & 23 — 190,748
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 24 1,124 —
Available-for-sale investment AL ERE 25 — 220,886
934,838 1,512,444
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories rE 26 18,422 21,806
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th fE Uk BR X 27 3,195,279 1,669,895
Contract assets BHEE 28 3,970 =
Prepaid lease payments AT & K 18 1,479 1,479
Long-term receivables due within one year » —F R Z|EiH
= Hi e W 3 E 22 — 62,915
Amounts due from associates JfE U Bt & N B) FR I8 29 983 603
Amount due from a non-controlling FEW—EH B AR —&IE
equity owner of a subsidiary ERESEEAFTIE 30 1,204 1,204
Amount due from a related party W —2EHEAL
KIE 31 1,866 1,866
Financial assets at fair value through profit &2 FEET AE =K
or loss TMEE 32 7.500 =
Pledged bank deposits BHEIFRITER 33 368,189 295,916
Bank balances and cash RITEBKRIRS 33 67,654 50,073
3,666,546 2,105,757
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERE
Trade payables and other liabilities BIHRENERR
HihaE 34 1,492,193 1,398,295
Contract liabilities AHEaE 35 110,855 —
Amount due to an associate JEAS — Bt AR FRIE 36 37,057 38,505
Tax payable JE At ¢ 18 80,598 100,163
Bank and other borrowings due within R —F AR EAERITR
one year HEE 37 1,037,611 587,708
2,758,314 2,124,671
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) RBEE(BRK)FH 908,232 (18,914)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERRBARK
LIABILITIES 1,843,070 1,493,530
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

xS B85 K R 3 R

At 31 March 2019
R=ZF-NAF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-NF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 AREFT ARETT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES % A R {6
Share capital % 25 39 551,378 549,014
Reserves i 800,739 780,048
Equity attributable to owners of RABIER AL #ER
the Company 1,352,117 1,329,062
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 134,541 116,823
TOTAL EQUITY HEiSEE 1,486,658 1,445,885
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREEHE
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIEEE 24 13,737 12,645
Bank and other borrowings due R —F R IRITR
after one year EMEE 37 77,678 35,000
Guaranteed notes ERER 38 264,997 —
356,412 47,645
1,843,070 1,493,530

FOREEFIUNAZEAUBBREREON_-F
—hERAZTN\BEE=S I ERRET
O ATIEERREE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 194 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jianqing Bao Jun
T@EE RE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement

GAEESEPEmE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BHE_T-NWF=A=+—HILFE

of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

EVEL PN
(Accumulated
Statutory Investment losses) Non-
Share Share Other surplus  Designated revaluation Translation retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve  safety fund reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
EERS EE  REER (RitE#R)
B+ RHERE  HbREE i Z2E HE  REERE REBH It kRRESR B3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETR ARETR ARETRT ARBTR AREBTIL ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT AR®TR
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(Bita) (M iEb) (Hizte)
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—t&
mA—-A 549014 4452014 (3,775,606) 28,255 2,714 = 3124 (100,513) 1,184,002 79,645 1,263,647
Profit for the year FRET - - - = = — - 142,060 142,060 31,378 173,438
Other comprehensive FREHZERA
income (expense) (%)
for the year — - — - — 14,014 (11,014) = 3,000 = 3,000
Total comprehensive income  £M 2 EMA
(expense) for the year (Bx)e8 = = — — — 14,014 (11,014) 142,060 145,060 31,378 176,438
Capital contribution from ~ KE—HHKBA
non-controlling interests FERERZ
of a subsidiary HE = = = = = = = = = 5,800 5,800
Transfer to statutory surplus 8 & Z £ R #
reserve B — — — 3712 — — — (3712 — — —
Transfer to designated BRZERRS
safety fund % — — — — 6,831 — — (6,831) — — —
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-\F
=A=t-H 549,014 4,452,014  (3,775,606) 31,967 34,545 14,014 (7,890) 31,004 1,329,062 116,823 1,445,885
Adjustments (note 2) AE (M2 - - - = = = = (2,352) (2,352) (26) (2,378)
At 1 April 2018 (restated) ~ RZZ—\#&
mA—-H
(B E5) 549,014 4,452,014  (3,775,606) 31,967 34,545 14,014 (7,890) 28,652 1,326,710 116,797 1,443,507
Profit for the year FERER = = = = = = = 28,357 28,357 17,744 46,101
Other comprehensive FREMZER
expense for the year = = = = = (20,165) (43) = (20,208) - (20,208)
Total comprehensive FR2E(RX)
(expense) income LN L
for the year - - - - - (20,165) (43) 28,357 8,149 17,744 25,893
Transfer upon disposal of ~ HE—FHEAF
a subsidiary rER = = = - - 6,151 - (6,151) - - -
Ordinary shares issued BETERR 2,364 14,894 - - - - - - 17,258 - 17,258
Transfer to statutory surplus BHZ AT RH
reserve ffh = = = 11,951 - - - (11.951) - - -
Transfer to designated BRZERR2
safety fund %3 - - - - 7,547 - - (7,547) - - -
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE
=A=t-A 551378 4,466908 (3775,606) 43918 42,092 - (7.933) 31,360 1,352,117 134,541 1,486,658
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BAESEHRRK

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

Notes:

Other reserve of the Group as at 1 April 2017 mainly represents (i) the
financial impact of adopting merger accounting for the acquisition of Union
Honor Limited (“UHL") and its subsidiaries; and (ii) a debit arising from the
deemed distribution to shareholder which represents the cash consideration
of the acquisition of UHL of Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") 70,000,000
(equivalent to Renminbi (“RMB") 55,595,000) paid to the vendor during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, they are required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, by way
of appropriations from their respective statutory net profit (based on their
PRC statutory financial statements) but before dividend distributions. They
are required to transfer 10% of the profit after tax to the statutory reserves.
The appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance
of the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital of
the relevant companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make
up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital
by means of a capitalisation issue. However, when converting the statutory
surplus reserve into capital, the remaining balance of such reserve must not
be less than 25% of the registered capital of the relevant companies.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulation, certain subsidiaries are required
to transfer a certain percentage based on a progressive rate on revenue
generated from manufacturing and transportation of gas or other dangerous
chemicals into a designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and
repair and maintenance of safety facilities. The movement during the year
represents the difference between the amounts provided based on the
relevant PRC regulation and the amount utilised during the year.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

zl-ﬁ EE § L BB %

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2019 2018
—B-hE —N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Operating activities MEER
Profit before tax B 250 A s A 71,277 212,415
Adjustments for: TP EEMEL AR
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - -BEERZRBEZ
equipment e 60,081 60,293
Amortisation of intangible asset EF/QFZ%% 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments IEANREN - i 1,479 1,389
Gain on fair value change of embedded Hﬁ)\ﬁm’il,ﬂ\ F
derivatives BEH W= — (14,939
Gain on settlement of consideration EREMRE W=
payable (437) =
Exchange difference PE M =%8 21,404 5,218
Gain on fair value change of derivative MESMITAERTFEE
financial instrument HH) 2 W (3,150) —
Finance costs R gD 87,667 23,498
Damages claim from deposit paid for PUEE — A AT
acquisition of an associate 22 BZ% EEZ
BERERR — (19,075)
Interest income 2 A (46,868) (72,007)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNRBEAR 2
Y 25 (8,049) —
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HjEfF@% B 5 K2
and equipment Rz BB (R a) 1 (38)
Share of results of associates EiEEt 2 NE 2 ¥EE 10,753 12,890
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) [ w(E%@)ﬂ@
i 3,430 (6,716)
Operating cash flows before movements  &E& ¢ & a7~
in working capital KERERE 197,981 203,321
Decrease in inventories A 3,384 4,978
Increase in contract assets BRE EE N (3,970) —
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & E e W AR K
32 h0 (1,194,607) (848,344)
Decrease in amount due from B — BB EAT
a related party IR A — 12
Decrease in amount due from non- FEU —FRK B A 73?? f%
controlling equity owner of a subsidiary A A FIER D — 11,606
Increase in amount due from an associate & g — & HﬁkM/\Ta’A
TE N — (603)
Increase in trade payables and B o EMNRIER
other liabilities H A B {5 18 A0 234,026 252,380
Increase in contract liabilities SRBEEM 3,752 =
(Decrease) increase in amount due to JEAS — Bt 2 AR FRIE
an associate R 2) 1 hn (1,448) 25,556
Cash used in operations LEFTFEIR & (760,882) (351,094)
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁﬁ 5 (6,427) (9146)
Income tax refunded REIFTER — 17,427
Net cash used in operating activities REXBAFELZ
BE R (767,309) (342,813)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-nE —T-NF
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETR ARET T
Investing activities BREEH
Interest received 2 W F B 4,027 1,956
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE#E « BE L& E
and equipment Z FT18 I8 63 210
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary & —EHK B AR Z 40
REeRAFRE 168,823 —
Advance to an associate BRT—REBE QT (380) —
Settlement of consideration payable for U — M E QT
acquisition of an associate ZEMNRE (335) —
Capital injection to an associate m—E#E A EE —_ (20,000)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEBE# % « = L& E (20,014) (25,809)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEFTAER
through profit or loss ZEMEE (7,500) —
Repayment of long term receivable BE R BAERRIE 62,965 —
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R EMRITFR 1,097,691 801,031
Placement of pledged bank deposits GFABEBEITHER (1,169,964) (910,848)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities % & /& B) TS (FT#E)
ReFH 135,376 (153,460)
Financing activities MEEH
Interest paid EAF A (77,063) (20,208)
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EEE Tk HbEE (843,627) (470,948)
Redemption of convertible bond BE O] a4 R E 55 — (66,217)
New bank and other borrowings raised EERHERTR
Hifg & 1,324,295 653,948
Issue of guaranteed notes BIOERER 245,902 =
Capital contribution from non-controlling KRB — i B A &
interests of a subsidiary EERER CHE — 5,800
Net cash from financing activities BEEESMEZ
ReFH 649,507 102,375
Net increase (decrease) in cash and HErkBR£%EEEBZ
cash equivalents hnGRY)iREE 17,574 (393,898)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENZHRER
the beginning of the year H&%EIEHR 50,073 463,222
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRE &) > 52 7 (19,251)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZEAER
the end of the year Re%¥HEIEH 67,654 50,073
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S B 3% AR B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BHE

—E-NF=ZA=1T—HILFE

GENERAL

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “"Group”)
is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section in the annual report.

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company was Champion Ever Limited
("Champion Ever”), which is a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned
by Mr. Wang Jianging (“Mr. Wang”), the chairman and a
director of the company.

The Group is principally engaged in the entering into oil
and gas sales and purchase contracts with a number of
counterparties, production and sale of liquefied natural
gas ("LNG"), sales of vehicle gas at refuelling station, sales
of piped gas, LNG transportation and construction of gas
pipeline infrastructure.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
which is also the presentation currency of the Company.

—REIE
EERBERERAD(AAF] 2
REMB AR B EE)D—
MRBREAMKIZARERA
A ERBREBBAZBHERA
ALT e AARZEMBERREE
B2 i RE R AR E R — 5
B -

ARBZEEEBR AR REEEZERA
AREEAERAR(EE]D EAR
RBREXBESEMAZIEHRARFE
FREEFIZBEALE(EREDZE
BEZERRT -

AEEEFTERFERZRHFHILA
HEAARBEEANZER £ER
HERIERAR (DRIERARD - 70
RUHEERAR HEBBRAR
BIERAREBRIEERAREER

REMBHRRIDAAREZS - HIF
BREARBZZ2HER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG B 35 #R AR B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current

year:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment
Property

Amendments to HKAS 40

Except as described below, the application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

Bt 35 3R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
21 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue
and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from wholesale of
LNG, oil and gas sales contracts, sales of vehicle
gas at refuelling stations, sales of piped gas, LNG
transportation and construction of gas pipeline
infrastructure.

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and
3 respectively.

The Group has performed an assessment on the
impact of the application of HKFRS 15 and concluded
that it does not have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods, and therefore no adjustment to
the opening retained profits at 1 April 2018 was
recognised.

2.

R REETEEM
BREEN(EEVBRE
A (&

21 HEEMBREENEI55
EREHKE
AEMERAEE S RERE S
B R B B155 o BB
MR S5 A E S e i
BISE185R 2% - BAEGERSE
NRZEAHRABERE

AEECEPERBEEMBER
EAERIE 155K - ¥ IR FE XA
AIMRFRZERTAERBH
“FT-)\FOA-BHER - 9%
FERBHNEMNERRF IR
Bom A (g m ey H A A A BB D
(ER) R AEEIN L E
B i REFBEVBER
EERNFISTRA BRI - A%
BOEREESZENERRR
E-_T-N\FHA—BHEKRTK
BAaH o Bt - HETHERERK
VREERER B S ER 18
Bz REBEHEMNBENRE
EEHORHEARERENLEK
BREHE®R -

AEBERRELZBRERA
R ABRERRARBEESD B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG B 35 #R AR B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FRPHMEIREBTEER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREEN(EEMBRE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A D(E&)

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 21 BEEMBHREENSEISR
Customers (Continued) ERSHWE(E)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts RZZE-N\FHA-BN&ZRaH
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BRARERNESRDAELIA
position at 1 April 2018. Line items that were not THE AXEHTEMNIEE
affected by the changes have not been included. WRBEEENAN -
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 2018 Reclassification 1 April 2018
F A REFBUE
RZT-N\F iR & A 1558
ZRA=+-H RZF-N\F
ERMREE ENSE DNA-HREE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Pt 3% ARET T ARETT ARET T
Current Liabilities RBER
Trade payables and BORMNERREME
other liabilities & (a) 1,398,295 (107,103) 1,291,192
Contract liabilities BNAR (a) = 107,103 107,103
1,398,295 — 1,398,295

Notes:

(a) As at 1 April 2018, advance receipts of RMB107,103,000 from
customers in respect of sales of LNG, oil and gas contracts,
vehicle gas at refuelling stations, piped gas, construction of
gas pipeline infrastructure and LNG transportation previously
included in trade payables were reclassified to contract
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR GE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. IRPHIIREETEEY
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREEN(EEVBRE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A (&)

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued) )
2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 21 HFEMBHREFELE15
Customers (Continued) EESHKE(E)
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying TREBAERBEBH B RS LE
HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated statement of A EAER —_FE—-NF=
financial position at 31 March 2019 and its consolidated R=+—RzGEaMBRRR K
statement of cash flows for the current year for each of rEEFEReREXRSHBIE
the line item affected. Line items that were not affected BT E TREFHFEMNIER
by the changes have not been included. WEBEAENAN -
Impact on the consolidated statement of HEAUBRRARNTE
financial position
Amounts
without

application of

As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
it g A

EEMBES

#1557

BEE ENOE ZEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT NS i

Current Assets mEEE
Amounts due from customers for EWREFE4

contract work TREHE — 3,970 3,970
Contract assets EHEE 3,970 (3,970) —
Current Liabilities RENEE
Trade payables and other liabilities & 5 &1 B8R 3k &

HaR’ 1,492,193 110,855 1,603,048

Contract liabilities aEHAaE 110,855 (110,855) =
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. RENHEI REESTTEERM
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREEU(EEMBRE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A (8E)

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 21 EEBHBEREEREISH
Customers (Continued) EESHWE(E
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash HEERERERNT
flows
Amounts
without

application of

As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
it g A

EEMEBES

#1557

BEE ENOE ZEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT ARETT

Operating Activities HEEH
Increase in amounts due from BREFEHTIRE

customers for contract work AL = (3,970) (3,970)
Increase in contract assets AZ’]ﬁFiﬁ on (3,970) 3,970 —
Increase in trade payables and other  EZEMNIEF K&

liabilities Hfth & 5 58 0 325,208 3,752 328,960
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEEMN 3,752 (3,752) —
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities and, 2)
expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets,
contract assets and financial guarantee contracts and
3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 April 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 March
2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

2.

R REETEEM
BREEN(EEVBRE
A (&)

2.2 HEEMPEREEN BN
£RTH
RAEE  NEBSERE S
MR &R B E9% 4 B T A R 48
BE () H 4 B 5 B 7 3R 5 2 A1l 4E
BIIEET - B A IS HREERIE9
KEAAEHFHRE: DeMEE
RemBENHBARIE  R2)
SREE ANEERNBE
RAEMMTESMEEEE(ESE
BB R)—REDE -

AEBERBEAVHREE
AIERATE M BRI ERE
BB ELERFIW - NH RN
—F-N\FHA-H(EXERA
H)EARZIEERNTEERRE
RoBRFEER(BERBE
EBERBEABETHNRME) AR
WEHER-_FT—\FMNA—H
RIFERN TERAHEBENR -
R-ZE-N\F=ZA=+—HKEK
HEER-_T-/\FOHA—BH
REEZANZBERAYIRE
AR EMERS S ER B

SRR = sk = S NN R
REBE G EMNFIRIZ A
TR:-BARTEIRENLER
BRELE® -

F& P& 78 B 755 S 5 R R SR 95k A
SIBH B AT BUR IO MY FE3 I EE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)
2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9
The table below illustrates the classification and

measurement of financial assets under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.

2.

R REETEEM

BRERA(EFEMBRE
A (&)

2.2 HEEMFE R EER BN
EMTIAEE)
BEXEREANKREER
FOEFTELE oV EME
TREIR-_E—\EmMA—H
BAERAS  ¢REERES
BB REEN LR REES
HEREIRM D ERTE -

Carrying

amounts Remeasurement Carrying

previously — impairment  amounts under

reported at 31 under HKFRS 9 at 1

March 2018  Reclassification ECL model April 2018

S REEEMEB

RZF-N\E EMtE—HRE HEEREIRRN

=H=t+-H BHEEEBR —E-0f

EHMREE ENNE BXHE MNA-BREE

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

M ARETT ARETFT ARBFT ARBFT

Deferred tax assets BEEHEEE (b) — — 461 461

Available-for-sale investment At HERE (a) 220,886 (220,886) - -

Equity instrument at fair BRAFETA
value through other HizEBAZ

comprehensive income AT A (a) = 220,886 = 220,886

Trade and other receivables &5 K& H fth & U 8% 3% (b) 1,669,895 — (2,848) 1,667,047

Reserves fE (b) 780,048 = (2,352) 777,696

Non-controlling interests FERES (b) 116,823 — (26) 116,797

Deferred tax liabilities EREBEAE (b) 12,645 — 9 12,636
Note (a): The Group elected to present in other comprehensive MaE@): AEEREZLDEAE

income ("OCI") for the fair value changes of its unquoted
equity investment previously classified as available-for-
sale ("AFS"). The investment is not held for trading and
not expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9, AFS investment was
reclassified to equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). The fair value gain
of RMB14,014,000 relating to this investment previously
carried at fair value continued to accumulate in investment
revaluation reserve.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Note (b):

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all contract
assets and trade receivables. Except for those which
had been determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39,
contract assets and trade receivables have been assessed
individually with outstanding significant balances, the
remaining balances are grouped based on past due
analysis. ECL for other financial assets at amortised
cost (mainly include long-term receivables, dividend
receivables, consideration receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from associates, amount due from a non-
controlling equity owner of a subsidiary, amount due
from a related party, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances) and financial guarantee contracts, are assessed
on 12-months ECL ("12m ECL") basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, additional credit loss allowance of
RMB2,848,000 has been recognised against retained profits
and non-controlling interests. The additional loss allowance
is charged against trade receivables. Deferred tax assets
of RMB461,000 has been recognised and deferred tax
liabilities of RMB9,000 has been debited accordingly.
The loss allowance as at 31 March 2018 reconciled to the
opening loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 are as follows:

2.

R REETEEM

BRERA(EFEMBRE

A (&)

2.2 HEEMFE R EER BN
EMTIAEE)
BEXEREAMKEREE

RIBOELE 2 ERE
(&)
GEICHEEX S EEES b E Ty

AIESSE B L A BRAE
EER RHAANEERE
SEREEFERA2BRGE
BEEBER BREREEES
RHERIEIRHEERERE
BEEN  BAEBEBRNRNTHE
BZEHNEEREHRUIER
BEREBNMG - MAEDRE
BEADITETOHE - ARER
RSB R R IR
o0 1R R AR B BR Y H A
CREE(ZZRERMER
BOR - MRS - BUWHKE -
Hfth YRR - fEURESE ' A R
R BB AT —RIEE
BHESERANRE Bl —%
BREALHR - EHEMRT
FRRRITER) R BER
EHMBERERERTIEZ2
BAARMEEBR(+=EA
BHMEEBERDEEFG -

R=ZFE—-—N\EFEFMA—H" B
BAR B A K I 1 AR A A AR
REMEEBEREARE
2,848,0007T © E fth &5 18 & &
REB SRR - 3Rt
ERREERBEEARE
461,000t R T AELE R B &
& A R#9,0007T - R & —
NE=ZA=+—BWEEEE
H_T— ) \FMA—BKEY

EREBEBHERENOT:
Trade receivables
2 5 FE W AR =X
RMB'000
AR FT
At 31 March 2018 — HKAS 39 R=ZE-NF=ZA=+—H

— BB G ERIFE39H 2,206

Amount remeasured through opening retained profits i i& #i ¥ 1% B & F| & Ik 45 R 4 25
and non-controlling interests B ENGE 2,848

RZZF—N\ENA—B —FBUKR

At 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 9 o B 9% 5,054
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. RAFIIREEZITEEY
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREEN(EEVBRE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A (&)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated FE P P A #h 5] 2E Al ¥4 sE 4
statement of financial position arising from *ﬁ MBERARNRE
the application of all new standards
As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting HRAEENGHRELSE £
policies above, the opening consolidated statement ﬁ fE) - E?ﬂzﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ)ﬂ%
of financial position had to be restated. The following EHEM - TRETHEXRE
table shows the adjustments recognised for each of the IE EmRANAE TXEHy
line items affected. Line items that were not affected EEBAWEIIA -

by the changes have not been included.

31 March
2018 1 April 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
—E-0\E EHUE EEHME Z—B-0\ZF
=HA=+-H & 2 A A mA—H
(BE#®) £155% E95 (EEH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETFT AR®TL AR®Tn ARETR

Non-current Assets EREBEE
AFS investment AHELE 220,886 = (220,886) =
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BATEEA
Eep2mlA
ZIRATE = = 220,886 220,886
Deferred tax assets BEHBEE = — 461 461
Others with no adjustments HitEAEIER 1,291,558 = = 1,291,558
1,512,444 = 461 1,512,905
Current Assets RHEE
Trade and other receivables B R HEER
R 1,669,895 = (2,848) 1,667,047
Others with no adjustments Hip & HEIER 435,862 — — 435,862
2.105,757 = (2,848) 2,102,909
Current Liabilities ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ
Trade payables and other liabilities ~ EZEMRF K
HingkE 1,398,295 (107,103) — 1,291,192
Contract liabilities AHAE — 107,103 — 107,103
Others with no adjustments HinEAEREE 726,376 — — 726,376
2,124,671 = = 2124671
Net Current Liabilities RBEETE (18.914) — (2,848) (21,762)
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #EEZERTEHERE 1,493,530 — (2,387) 1,491,143
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRI REBTEED
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREEN(FEEUBRSE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A (E&)

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated 2.3 FERFAMTEAHE
statement of financial position arising NGEEMBRARNEE
from the application of all new standards (#&)

(Continued)
31 March
2018 1 April 2018

(Audited) ~ HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
ZE-0\% BRUE BEME Z¥-0\%
ZR=t+-H REER BEER mA—A

(EER) 155 R (EE5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR

Capital and Reserves BERGEE
Share capital BRA 549,014 — — 549,014
Reserves i 780,048 — (2,352) 777,696

Equity attributable to owners AASHAANEN

of the Company g 1,329,062 = (2,352) 1,326,710
Non-controlling Interests FERER 116,823 — (26) 116,797
Total Equity B 1,445,885 — (2,378) 1,443,507
Non-current Liabilities kRBAR

Deferred tax liabilities EEHBAE 12,645 — 9 12,636

ltems with no adjustments EHZIEE 35,000 — — 35,000

47,645 — 9 47,636

1,493,530 = (2,387) 1,491,143

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating MaF: RBEE_FE-—ALF=A=+—H
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31 March FFEREEAAREEZEEDY

2019, movements in working capital have been computed WREREMS  2EEENE
based on opening consolidated statement of financial position BOIBRBEEXABREN TN

as at 1 April 2018 as disclosed above. FMA-—BENGEEUBRAEK

FTE .
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual

period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements
of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own
use while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid
lease payments will continue to be presented as investing
or operating cash flow in accordance with the nature, as
appropriate.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB1,888,000 as disclosed
in note 44. A preliminary assessment indicates that certain of
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB596,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits paid may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
paid would be considered as additional lease payments and
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group has elected the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the
Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group has elected
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening retained profits without
restating comparative information.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

J the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities,
and cash flows

equity, income,
expenses relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted
in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon

application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement

of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in relation to the LNG transportation service is
measured based on output method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in relation to the construction of gas pipeline
infrastructure is measured based on input method, which
is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts
or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services
to be provided by the other party.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described
below.

Revenue from sales of goods, which includes wholesale of
LNG, sales of vehicle gas at refuelling stations and sales of
piped gas, is recognised when goods are delivered and titles
have passed.

Revenue from oil and gas contracts is recognised on the
gross proceeds from oil and gas sales contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from provision of services, which
construction of gas pipeline infrastructure and LNG
transportation, is recognised when services are provided.

includes

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose other than construction in progress
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held and operating leases, are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and
will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
other income line item in profit or loss.

92 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

3.

FEEFTBRER)

£ TH(SE)

cEEE (&)
iwﬁﬁé/\*gﬁﬁféufi(ﬁﬂgﬂﬁnf
22 B EEFE B REERE
e (&)

(i)

(ii)

B SRR A KRR B A
HERRBHRAGFEZERE
EZMBWATIERERM X
ETAEER - MBWRATIE —
REeMEERTAERRER
MEFUHE  HEERRBBEEE
MEZEREERINETX) -
REREBEEERECERE
EmMs BT —HEHE - FE
WATHEREEBHENARE
REBRMNXFTURER - HMiEE
ﬁﬁ@MIEZZﬁ @R Ures -
ﬁ%ﬂﬁéKﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁW@
REETEETHBLREERE
% - BRSHRABENSHEAT
HeREERAAERERER
MR LARER ©

BEEREBEATEFAAHEMEZE
WAZBATA

BAFEFARMEZERAZ
BEARTAKRERERRAFER

2 EATEEHMELEZW
s MEERNEMEE R AR

YT REEEGFBRT : AHA
EITRENE - BERA s
ABHEITENHERARER
EFOBERS BREES
R

=N SE IR RV S S Rl
%'%#%%Wﬁmk L= A
TEIER — R DR E XA - BRIKE
&ﬁﬁ%h$1ﬂ¢ﬁmmk
ERIEETHER - REFTAR
m%ﬁ@WAEEW



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG B 35 #R AR B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—BLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)
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(iiiy  Financial assets at FVTPL (i) BHAFEFAEGZEHEE
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being TREZRBHEXIFESRA
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Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 ORELREZ EREE(BEESR
(including trade and other receivables, long-term receivables, HM W R REEKHIE - B
amounts due from associates, amount due from a non- B N A FRIE - U —E B AR 3E
TRERFEEARE BE—EEH#H
HEATHRE e BHRITERALR

controlling equity owner of a subsidiary, amount due from a
related party, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash), contract assets and financial guarantee contracts. The THHEES)  AEENMTEER
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect BRI RPEEBERAERRES -
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. EHEEFEeRENSRESAHED

B UARMBEVBERARZEE
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all FHEEEBEERB I AENE
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant RERANMABERAOSH K/
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of ZLTEHBEEEE MR TZEAE
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events HEEEBREREAMET-BEAA
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. AREHBECENEHEREES|IRE 2
Assessments are made based on the Group’s historical credit — MO HEREEERE - STE IR
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the BAEEREEEBELREL - I
HEBAREREZE  —REBRER
RB|BEBRHEBRREL 2T EARR
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debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on trade
receivables is assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances or that are credit impaired and/or
collectively using a provision matrix based on the past due
status of the remaining debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase

in the credit spread, the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;
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